
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              February 2, 2021 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

February 2, 2021 - 8:30 A.M.              **AMENDED** 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957] – Title: Public Works Director 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County 
Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association 
(ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; 
Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: 
all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, 
Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, Deputy Personnel Director Sue 
Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health and Human Services Director 
Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 

  
 

  4. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT – Pursuant to Government Code §54957 – Title: 
Veterans Service Officer 

  
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board 
of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively online.  

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. 
Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. 
Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to 
gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising feature" 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. 
Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make 
sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              February 2, 2021 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  9. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 10. District Attorney - Request Board change the Authorized Strength in the District 
Attorney’s Office by deleting one full-time District Attorney Investigator Assistant, 
Range 64 ($4,124 - $5,011) and add one full-time Criminal Investigator I-II, Range 
71-74 SA-SF ($5,349-$7,937) authorize the hiring up to F step depending on 
qualifications. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 11. Agricultural Commissioner - ESWMA - Request Board authorize the Agricultural 
Commissioner and the Director of the Water Department to sign a Letters of Intent 
between the County of Inyo and Sierra Nevada Alliance for the provision of three (3) 
Field Assistants from the Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Membership in an amount not 
to exceed $21,375 for the period of April 5, 2021 through September 18, 2021, 
contingent on approval of the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Midyear Budget. 

  
 

 12. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board approve 
the California Department of Technology Snowflake Database Data Use and 
Disclosure Agreement between County of Inyo Health and Human Services and the 
California Department of Public Health for the purpose of the receipt and use of data 
relating to COVID-19 in Skilled Nursing Facilities and General Acute Care Hospitals, 
and authorize the HHS Director to sign. 

  
 

 13. Probation - Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
Inyo Council for the Arts of Bishop, CA for the provision of an after-school music and 
arts program to youth in an amount not to exceed $12,600 for the period of February 
8, 2021 through December 31, 2021, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the 
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 14. County Administrator - Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign a letter of support for Eastern Sierra Transit Authority's FTA Section 5304 grant 
application for fleet electrification planning. 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              February 2, 2021 

  
 

 15. County Administrator - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board 
consider request from Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. to assign the Franchise 
Agreement Between the County of Inyo and Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. for 
Collection of Solid Waste from Residential and Commercial Customers (Agreement) 
to Madera Disposal Systems, Inc. dba Bishop Waste Disposal, and either: 

A) approve Preferred Septic and Disposal’s request and direct staff to prepare 
the Resolution required by Section 17.01 of the agreement;  

B) find that the request is not reasonable because assigning the Agreement to 
the only remaining franchisee is contrary to the intent of the agreement: “to 
provide Customers and the County with improved Collection Services while 
maintaining the benefits of competition” (Section 10.01); or 
C) Direct staff to work with the existing waste haulers to develop an 
amendment or replacement for the existing franchise agreement that would 
allow Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. to sell its stock while maintaining 
the opportunity for a second franchisee to enter the Inyo County solid waste 
collection market (staff recommendation). 

  
 

 16. Public Works - Request Board:  
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Bishop Air Rehab Runway 12-30 Budget 

(631100) as follows: 
1. Increase estimated revenue in Federal Grants Revenue Code 4555 by 

$492,066; 
2. Increase appropriations in Construction in Progress Object Code 5700 by 

$492,066;  
3. Decrease appropriations in Professional Services Object Code 5265 by 

$40,265; and 
4. Increase appropriations in External Charges Object Code 5124 by 

$40,265 (4/5ths vote required); 
B) Approve the proposed Resolution No. 2021-14, titled, "A Resolution of the 

Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Ratifying Change 
Orders to the Contract with Granite Construction Inc. for the Runway 12-30 
Rehabilitation Project at the Bishop Airport," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign; and 

C) Approve the proposed Resolution No. 2021-15, titled, "A Resolution of the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the 
Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Bishop Airport - Runway 12-30 
Rehabilitation Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 17. County Administrator - Risk Management - Request Board ratify and approve the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC of Sacramento, 
CA for the provision of legal services in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for the 
period of January 22, 2021 until the subject litigation is completed, contingent upon 
the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 18. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of January 5, 2021, January 12, 2021, and January 19, 2021. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  19. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              February 2, 2021 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 

 



County of Inyo

District Attorney
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Tom Hardy 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of (1) eliminating one full-time position, the District Attorney Investigator Assistant and (2) 
hiring of one full-time position, District Attorney Criminal Investigator I or II 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board change the Authorized Strength in the District Attorney’s Office by deleting one full-time District 
Attorney Investigator Assistant, Range 64 ($4,124 - $5,011) and add one full-time Criminal Investigator I-II, 
Range 71-74 SA-SF ($5,349-$7,937) authorize the hiring up to F step depending on qualifications.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In 2017, the District Attorney’s office, in the spirit of “service redesign”, asked to not fill a third Criminal 
Investigator position and instead hire a non-sworn Investigator Assistant. The Investigator Assistant position 
became vacant in October, 2020 due to a resignation. For reasons set forth in the “Background/History of Board 
Actions” section, below, the District Attorney is seeking to defund the Investigator Assistant position and to fill the 
vacant third Criminal Investigator position, returning the office to pre-2017 staffing levels.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Historically, and for many years, the DA’s Office employed three sworn law enforcement personnel in the 
Investigations Unit. Traditionally, the Chief Investigator and one Criminal Investigator were assigned primarily to 
assisting DA attorneys with follow-up investigation and trial preparation work, while one Investigator was 
assigned to INET (the Inyo Narcotics Enforcement Team). The INET Investigator position was funded by the then 
INET grant and, while available to assist with non-drug enforcement activities, the INET Investigator spent the 
vast majority of his/her time working drug investigations.

Prior to my appointment as DA in September, 2013, the INET grant no longer funded the third Investigator 
position and it had become a general fund position. Subsequently, the entire INET grant ended, and INET was 
“converted” to MINT—the Major Investigations and Narcotics Team—a cooperative investigatory team primarily 
composed by Sheriff Department Investigators, assisted by the two DA Investigators. While the City of Bishop 
Police Department was originally part of MINT, it has not been an active participant for a number of years.

In 2017, in the spirit of the County’s “Service Re-Design” efforts, new Chief Investigator Stephanie Rennie and I, 
with the support of County Administration, decided to try an experiment replacing the third Investigator position 
with a non-sworn “Investigator Assistant” position. The theory behind this was that (1) it would save money, and 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

(2) promote efficiencies by taking certain work that did not require a sworn peace officer position and putting it in 
the hands of the non-sworn Assistant. It was thought that this could be helpful with the welfare fraud caseload 
(which is paperwork intensive) and other types of mostly “white collar” cases which are paper-heavy. In simple 
terms, we thought that there was a good likelihood that we could provide the same level of service at a lower cost 
by using a non-sworn position.

In late 2017/early 2018 we completed our first recruitment. The first person to hold the position did not complete 
probation. The second person completed probation, but resigned from the position in October, 2020. Having now 
had the opportunity to review our experiment with the Investigative Assistant position, my evaluation is that we 
have not been able to provide a satisfactory level of service and that it would be more beneficial to the citizens of 
Inyo County to return to a third, sworn Investigator position.

We have found it difficult to fill the non-sworn position with a person of sufficient education and discretion to 
handle the sensitive nature of the work, and we have also found that while the Investigator Assistant was able to 
handle some of the routine, administrative duties of an Investigator, the benefit did not make up for the loss. Only 
sworn investigators can handle the preparation and issuance of search warrants and, quite frankly, the 
subsequent analysis of information obtained as a result of those warrants. The non-sworn position is, generally, 
not able to testify to findings and conclusions in court. Further, only sworn investigators are available for after-
hours call-outs, and the ability of a non-sworn position to assist other agencies is very limited. It also appeared 
that our sworn Investigators were spending more time guiding the work of the Investigator Assistant than they 
would have taken in just doing the work themselves.

Anecdotally, there has not seemed to be increased levels of criminal behavior, but we are seeing more serious 
cases. The DA’s office is now handling a relatively complex, gang-related situation involving the use of deadly 
force, and an Officer Involved Shooting involving a Sheriff’s Deputy, as well as a homicide that occurred in 
Southeastern Inyo County. We have also observed that our partner agencies (primarily the Sheriff’s Department 
and the Bishop Police Department) have been experiencing personnel stress as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic. While we are optimistic that that situation will resolve in the coming year, it reflexes the challenges of 
operating small departments in a relatively vast geographical area.

In essence, a third sworn investigator can do everything that we need, while the non-sworn Investigator Assistant 
cannot.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not authorize the hiring of the requested DA Criminal Investigator. While the District Attorney’s office could 
“survive” with only two investigators, we would be required to significantly curtail our assistance to other 
agencies, possibly creating the need for an additional Sheriff’s Department Investigator and diminishing the 
quality of service to the citizens and visitors of Inyo County.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
This proposed change was not budgeted in the FY 2020-2021 budget—however, appropriate modifications have 
been included in the mid-year budget review and, as this is written, it is anticipated that those modifications will 
be approved. Personnel costs in the DA general budget would be reduced, while DA safety would increase. 
These are changes to the general fund expenditures. There could be some minor increases to other operating 
expenses, such as motor pool and training. Since DA Investigators are not first responders, any new law 
enforcement equipment can be provided for out of our modest COPS allocation.  It is anticipated that the result 
will be a net increase in general fund expenditures of approximately $64,000.00 annually.  Due to the time to 
recruit and hire for the position it is anticipated that there will be continued salary savings until at least mid-spring.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Maureen McVicker Created/Initiated - 1/11/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/11/2021
Maureen McVicker Approved - 1/19/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/20/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/21/2021
Tom Hardy Final Approval - 1/21/2021



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - ESWMA
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Nathan Reade, Aaron Steinwand, Alexandra Barbella 
 
SUBJECT:  Request Board authorize the Agricultural Commissioner and the Director of the Water Department to 
sign a Letter of Intent between the County of Inyo and Sierra Nevada Alliance 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize the Agricultural Commissioner and the Director of the Water Department to sign a 
Letters of Intent between the County of Inyo and Sierra Nevada Alliance for the provision of three (3) Field 
Assistants from the Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Membership in an amount not to exceed $21,375 for the period of 
April 5, 2021 through September 18, 2021, contingent on approval of the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Midyear Budget.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Eastern Sierra Weed Management (ESWMA) division of the Agricultural Commissioner's Office and the Inyo 
County Water Department (ICWD) seek to obtain three (3) seasonal field assistants through an agreement with 
the Sierra Nevada Alliance (SNA) for invasive plant control work during the 2021 season. A letter of intent must 
be received by SNA prior to March 15, 2021 in order to move forward with the process of contracting with SNA 
for these personnel services.

If authorized and a contract is entered into between the County of Inyo and SNA, these seasonal positions would 
provide extra help needed to complete field work funded by various grants. The ESWMA budget and the ICWD 
budget will benefit from a partnership with the SNA since significant cost savings will result. 

For the current field season, April through September 2021, the County is responsible for $7,125 per member for 
a total of $21,375. ESWMA will be responsible for two (2) members for a total of $14,250. ICWD will be 
responsible for one (1) member for a total of $7,125. The Letter of Intent states that funds are contingent on the 
approval of the 2020-2021 fiscal year mid-year budgets.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership is administered by the Sierra Nevada Alliance. This programs places 
individuals who are interested in environmental management in early career positions. The program covers half 
of the wages and benefits. Last field season, April through September 2020, the ESWMA contracted with SNA 
for (1) Field Assistant. This partnership was successful and strengthened our relationship with the AmeriCorps 
program, off-set labor costs, helped introduce an early career land manager to the Eastern Sierra, and expanded 
our field crew's ability to meet the ESWMA and Agriculture Department mission of treating noxious weeds.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The Board could not approve the action outlined in the Departmental Recommendation. This alternative would 
limit the scope of noxious weed abatement treatments, allowing for an increase in noxious weed populations in 
Inyo and Mono Counties, and potentially preclude this program from fulfilling commitments to current grant 
funding requirements and contracted work for other agencies.

This alternative would also limit the ability of the ICWD to meet commitments for riparian monitoring along the 
Middle and Lower Owens River and experimental restoration techniques to be tested on the Lower Owens River 
Project.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
In the 2021 field season, the ESWMA and ICWD are entering into the program together to share administrative 
responsibilities. We are excited to continue our partnership with the Sierra Nevada Alliance which is a local non-
profit organization that directs federal AmeriCorps resources to the communities of the Sierra Nevada.
 
FINANCING:
Sufficient funds are available for these positions from April 4, 2021 through June 30, 2021 in the ESWMA fiscal 
year 2020-2021 budget (unit 621300, object code 5265, Professional and Special Services) pending approval of 
the mid-year budget by the Board of Supervisors. Since these positions are paid in-full by March 15, 2021, there 
is no need to consider the fiscal year 2021-2022. The ESWMA is a non-general fund program. There will be no 
fiscal impact to the Inyo County General Fund.

Sufficient funds are available for these positions from April 4, 2021 through June 30, 2021 in the ICWD fiscal year 
2020-2021 budget (unit 024102, object code 5265, Professional and Special Services) pending approval of the 
mid-year budget by the Board of Supervisors. Since these positions are paid in-full by March 15, 2021, there is 
no need to consider the fiscal year 2021-2022. The ICWD is a non-general fund program. There will be no fiscal 
impact to the Inyo County General Fund.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. ICWD HalfTerm Member Service Plan 2021
2. Ag/ESWMA HalfTerm Member Service Plan 2021
3. ICWD Letter of Intent 2021
4. Ag/ESWMA Letter of Intent 2021
 
APPROVALS:
Alexandra Barbella Created/Initiated - 1/21/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/21/2021
Alexandra Barbella Approved - 1/21/2021
Nathan Reade Approved - 1/21/2021
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 1/21/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/22/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/22/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/22/2021
Nathan Reade Approved - 1/25/2021
Aaron Steinwand Final Approval - 1/26/2021



 

 

 
 
 

Member Service Plan 
Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership 

 
 

 
Organizational Background:  

The Inyo County Water Department monitors the vegetation, soil water, and hydrology within the 
Owens Valley, CA in accordance with a Long Term Water Agreement (LTWA) with the City of Los 
Angeles to manage ground and surface water exportation while maintaining local environmental 
conditions. One of the primary LTWA goals is to manage water resources while maintaining vegetation 
community types in the Owens Valley in the same condition as existed during a ‘baseline’ period 
(1984-1987). The Inyo County Water Department (ICWD) monitors a variety of vegetation types, 
including within ground water dependent (phreatophytic) and riparian vegetation communities, as well 
as monitoring: hydrologic conditions in subsurface test wells, surface water flows, and soil moisture at 
sites across the Owens Valley from the Pleasant Valley Dam in the north to Owens Lake in the south. 
ICWD has participated in cooperative studies to better understand water needs of groundwater 
dependent vegetation communities and has a substantial long term vegetation community dataset. We 
also assess mitigation project conditions across the valley including a large scale river re-watering and 
restoration project on the Lower Owens River through which we work collaboratively and adaptively 
with several parties to realize project goals. 
 
Organizational/Program Goals 2021:  
Each year ICWD monitors a set of permanent vegetation transects within groundwater 
dependent vegetation communities including alkali meadows, wet meadows, or saltbush and 
rabbitbrush mixed scrub-meadows or scrub communities. The Water Department is also 
concurrently involved in a new study of the riparian system along the Owens River. Riparian 
forest is specifically targeted because it is one of the most vulnerable community types in the 
Owens Valley, the land area of this community type has declined on the lower Owens River, 
and riparian forest establishment is a goal of the Lower Owens River Project (LORP), a large 
scale mitigation and river restoration project identified in the LTWA. Our program for 2021 will 
thus focus on historic and current riparian tree recruitment along the Middle and Lower Owens 
River as well as to describe local stand age and size structure of populations to assess 



 

population dynamics and long term viability.  
 

Member Service Plan Overview and Outcomes:  
Due to the varied environmental datasets ICWD is involved in collecting, SNAP volunteers may 
be exposed to various vegetation, soil, or hydrologic sampling techniques. Primary activities will 
involve vegetation sampling within groundwater dependent vegetation communities or as part 
of novel riparian studies. Ongoing long-term vegetation monitoring includes revisiting 
permanent vegetation transects using a combination of GPS and printed maps, and identifying 
and recording plant species present. Riparian studies will involve working in a crew of 2 or 3 
with a team leader, locating new transect startpoints, setting up transects, marking start and 
end locations, recording vegetation along the centerline, recording canopy cover, and 
identifying and recording riparian tree positions within a 10-m wide belt transect.  At these 
riparian transects members may also collect soil samples, record fluvial geomorphic surfaces, 
or assist in collecting tree core samples. SNAP members may also be involved in restoration 
efforts on the LORP including removing encroaching marsh vegetation (primarily cattail and 
hard stem bulrush) currently competing with riparian tree recruitment, and recording riparian 
sapling size and height measurements. 
 
Service Position Major Projects:  

 
1. Watershed Restoration and Assessment: 

a. Priority Project: As a result of the re-watering of 62 miles of the Lower Owens 
River at relatively low flows, tules (primarily Typha spp. and Schoenoplectus 
acutus) have invaded former point bars and other potential recruitment locations 
for riparian trees, competing with successful riparian tree establishment. The 
SNAP member will assist staff in marsh vegetation removal using hand tools on 
small sections of Owens River bank approximately 3-5 m wide by 5-10 m long 
from the water’s edge through marsh vegetation into the drier vegetation transition 
such as wet meadow. The member will gain experience identifying wetland 
vegetation, assessing health of riparian tree saplings along the river bank, and 
applying river restoration methods. This is an experiment and therefore does not 
cover a substantial area in this first year but is critical to inform future restoration 
work in subsequent years. 

i. Projected Hours: 160 
ii. Estimated Acres Restored: 1 

1. Acres Restored by Member (ONLY): 0.5 
**Members may participate in one, or a combination of the following projects (not to 
exceed 600 hours total): 
b. Priority Project: Members will assist in riparian vegetation monitoring and 

studies as part of a 2-3 person team. Member tasks may include navigation to 
transect start points using GPS, setting up start and end points, identifying plants 
to the species level, locating and recording riparian trees within a 10-m wide belt, 
collecting soils, or recording fluvial geomorphic type. Members will learn to 
identify riparian, wetland and marsh species and to perform a set of riparian 
measurements. 

i. Projected Hours: 300 
ii. Estimated Acres Restored: NA 

1. Acres Restored by Member (ONLY): NA 
c. Priority Project: Ongoing vegetation monitoring within groundwater dependent 



 

vegetation communities. The SNAP member may be involved in the ICWD annual 
assessment of vegetation conditions within alkali meadow, wet meadow, or 
saltbush-rabbitbrush scrub communities on the floor of the Owens Valley created 
by subsurface flows which create relatively shallow groundwater conditions in an 
area with only 5-6 in of annual precipitation thus supporting meadow systems. 
Members will be trained in vegetation identification to the species level and both 
learn and master the line-point vegetation monitoring technique. 

i. Projected Hours: 300 
ii. Estimated Acres Restored: NA 

1. Acres Restored by Member (ONLY): NA 
 

d. Watershed Restoration and Assessment Totals: 
i. Total Projected Hours: 760 
ii. Total Estimated Acres Restored: 1 

1. Total Member Acres Restored: 0.5 
2. Environmental Education 

a. Priority Project: not applicable 
i. Projected Hours:  
ii. Estimated Education Outcomes: 

1. Presentations: not applicable  
3. Volunteer Recruitment and Support: 

a. Priority Project: not applicable 
i. Projected Hours:  
ii. Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Number of Volunteers Recruited:  
2. Total # of Hours Served by Volunteers:  

4. Resource Attainment:  
a. Priority Project: not applicable 

i. Projected Hours:  
ii. Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Number of Donations (Grants, Services, Goods, etc):  
2. Dollar Amount of Donation:  

5. Green Jobs Training and Member Development:  
a. SNAP Specific Trainings: Required SNAP Member Orientation and Spring 

Training and Service Projects, Fall Training and Graduation, Monthly Webinars 
i. Projected Hours: 75 Hours 

b. Site Specific Orientation: Line Point Vegetation Monitoring 
i. Projected Hours: 20 

c. Site Specific Training: Riparian Vegetation Monitoring 
i. Projected Hours: 30 

d. Site Specific Training: Marsh Vegetation Removal 
i. Projected Hours: 5 

e. Site Specific Training: Safety Training 
i. Projected Hours: 10 



 

f. Member Training and Development Totals: 
i. Total Projected Hours: 140 

6. Total Hours: 900 
 

7. Member- driven projects based on individual interests and skills: 40 
8. Percentage Totals: 

a. Watershed Restoration and Assessment: 80% 
b. Watershed Education and Outreach: 0% 
c. Volunteer Recruitment and Support: 0% 
d. Resource Attainment: 0% 
e. Member Training and Development: 15% 
f. Member-driven Projects: 5% 



SNAP 2021 Half Term Service Plan 

 

 

Member Service Plan 
Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership 

 
 

 
Organizational Background:  
The Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area (ESWMA) is tasked with monitoring new and existing 
noxious weeds, creating channels of communication between agencies, and educating the public 
about noxious weeds for Inyo and Mono Counties. The ESWMA is administered out of the Inyo 
County Department of Agriculture, and is a collaborative of many of the land managers in the Eastern 
Sierras including Inyo National Forest, Bureau of Land Management, Los Angeles Department of 
Water and Power, California Department of Transportation and the Inyo County Department of 
Agriculture. The members meet biannually to discuss weed treatment strategies and how to best 
collaborate to exterminate key noxious weeds from Inyo and Mono counties. The activities of the 
ESWMA are directed by a strategic plan drafted by and voted on by all the members. 

 
Organizational/Program Goals 2021: The goals of the Eastern Sierra Weed Management 
Area: 

● Overall goals: treat and eradicate invasive noxious weeds as possible; contain 
noxious weeds when eradication is not possible 

● Treat Pepperweed, tamarisk, and knapweed sites 
 

 
Member Service Plan Overview and Outcomes:  

The member will be responsible for Perennial Pepperweed Removal on the Owens River with the Inyo 
County Department of Agriculture. This is divided into two different projects totalling about 20000 acres 
that needs surveyed and treated (as needed) every season. The member will be one of four to five 
people responsible for this task.  
 
The member will also be responsible for Tamarisk Tree removal in remote areas managed by the Inyo 
National Forest and the Bureau of Land Management. 
 
Depending on the interests of the member there are opportunities for the member to participate in 
writing California state grant proposals, shadow a land management professional from the Inyo County 
Water Department (Botany specialist), Inyo National Forest, or BLM (as COVID and the field season 
allow). 



SNAP 2021 Half Term Service Plan 

 
Service Position Major Projects:  

● Perennial Pepperweed Removal from the Owens River 
● Tamarisk Tree removal from select canyons in the White Mountains 

  
 
 

1. Watershed Restoration and Assessment: 
a. Priority Project: Perennial Pepperweed Removal from the Owens River -  

i. Projected Hours: 455 
ii. Estimated Acres Restored: 8165 acres are surveyed for Perennial 

Pepperweed for the Wildlife Conservation Board Grant plus another 
12000 acres are surveyed for the Lower Owens River Restoration 
Project; on average less than 50 acres needs herbicide intervention. 

1. Acres Restored by Member (ONLY): Depending on how many 
seasonal employees are recruited, the Member will be 
responsible for surveying and treating 4,033 acres to 6,721 
acres using a combination of ATV and on-foot surveillance. On 
average one person will actively treat 10-15 acres with 
herbicide. 

b. Priority Project: Tamarisk Tree removal from canyons in the White Mountains 
i. Projected Hours: 60 
ii. Estimated Acres Restored: 10 

1. Acres Restored by Member (ONLY): 5 (responsibility is split 
by project team member) 

c. Priority Project: Inyo National Forest Miscellaneous Weed Management 
Projects 

i. Projected Hours: 90 
ii. Estimated Acres Restored: 30 

1. Acres Restored by Member (ONLY): 30 
d. Priority Project: Bureau of Land Management Miscellaneous Weed 

Management Projects 
i. Projected Hours: 90 
ii. Estimated Acres Restored: 30 

1. Acres Restored by Member (ONLY): 30 
e. Watershed Restoration and Assessment Totals: 

i. Total Projected Hours: 670 
ii. Total Estimated Acres Restored: 100 

1. Total Member Acres Restored: 75-80 
 

2. Watershed Education 
a. Priority Project: Not Applicable 

i. Projected Hours: 0 
ii. Estimated Education Outcomes: N/A 

1. Presentations (Presentations and/or Service Learning projects of 
at least 30 minutes in which the Member will be able to query 
participants with a pre- and post-test): N/A 

b. Watershed Education Totals: 



SNAP 2021 Half Term Service Plan 

i. Total Projected Hours: 0 
ii. Total Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Presentations: N/A 
 

3. Volunteer Recruitment and Support: 
a. Priority Project: Not Applicable 

i. Projected Hours: 0 
ii. Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Number of Volunteers Recruited: 0 
2. Total # of Hours Served by Volunteers: 0 

b. Volunteer Recruitment and Support Totals: 
i. Total Projected Hours: 0 
ii. Total Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Number of Volunteers Recruited: 0 
2. Total # of Hours Served by Volunteers: 0 

 
4. Resource Attainment:  

a. Priority Project:  
i. Projected Hours: 0 
ii. Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Number of Donations (Grants, Services, Goods, etc):  
2. Dollar Amount of Donation:  

b. Priority Project:  
i. Projected Hours:  
ii. Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Number of Donations (Grants, Services, Goods, etc):  
2. Dollar Amount of Donation:  

c. Resource Attainment Totals: 
i. Total Projected Hours:  
ii. Total Estimated Outcomes: 

1. Number of Donations: 
2. # of Hours Served by Volunteers:  

5. Member Training and Development: (Please note that Members can complete 
no more than 180 hours of training – 75 hours are provided by SNAP, up to 105 
hours provided by host site.) 

a. SNAP Specific Trainings: Required SNAP Member Orientation, Spring Training 
and Service Projects, Fall Training and Sierra Nevada Alliance Annual 
Conference, and Graduation 

i. Projected Hours: 75 Hours provide through SNAP 
b. Site Specific Orientation: Herbicide Use and Safety Training 

i. Projected Hours: 35 
c. Site Specific Training: ATV Use and Safety Training 

i. Projected Hours: 35 
d. Site Specific Training: Orientation to Inyo County procedures and work sites 

i. Projected Hours: 10 
e. Member Training and Development Totals: 

i. Total Projected Hours: 155 



SNAP 2021 Half Term Service Plan 

 
6. Member- driven projects based on individual interests and skills: 50 

 
 
Total Service Hours: 900 
 
Percentage Totals: 

a. Watershed Restoration and Assessment: 77.8% 
b. Watershed Education and Outreach: 0% 
c. Volunteer Recruitment and Support: 0% 
d. Resource Attainment: 0% 
e. Member Training and Development: 17.2% 
f. Member-driven Projects: 5.6% 



 
 

COUNTY OF INYO 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

 

[Date of Signature] 
 

Sierra Nevada Alliance 
S. Lake Tahoe Office 
3079 Harrison Ave 
South Lake Tahoe, CA 96150 
 
 
Subject: Letter of Intent 
 
Dear Jenny Hatch, 
 
The Inyo County Water Department submits a Letter of Intent to partner with the Sierra 
Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership and the Sierra Nevada Alliance for the 2020-21 program year 
for the following position: 
 

 Field Assistant x 1 
 
We will be paying $7,125 cash match as stated in the SNAP Host Site Application by March 15, 
2021. This payment and letter are contingent upon the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
approving the fiscal year (2020-2021) mid-year budget amendments. 
 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Water Department at (760) 878-0001.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

 

 

 

Aaron Steinwand 
Director, Inyo County Water Department 

 (760) 878-0001 

  FAX: (760) 878-2552 

 
 

 

P.O. Box 337 
135 South Jackson Street 

Independence, CA  93526 

WEB: http://www.inyowater.org 



 

207 WEST SOUTH STREET | BISHOP, CA 93514 |PHONE 760.873.7860 | FAX 760.872.1610 | WWW.INYOMONOAGRICULTURE.COM 

COUNTIES OF INYO AND MONO 
 

AGRICULTURE • WEIGHTS & MEASURES • OWENS VALLEY MOSQUITO ABATEMENT PROGRAM • EASTERN SIERRA WEED MANAGEMENT AREA 
 

 

 
Sierra Nevada Alliance 
S. Lake Tahoe Office 
3079 Harrison Ave 
South Lake Tahoe, CA 96150 
 
Date: Date of Signature 
 
 
 
Dear Jenny Hatch, 
 
The Inyo County Department of Agriculture submits a Letter of Intent to partner with the Sierra 
Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership and the Sierra Nevada Alliance for the 2020-2021 program year 
for the following position(s): 
 
 
• Field Assistant, Level 1 (x2) 
 
 
We will be paying $14,250 cash match as stated in the SNAP Host Site Application by March 15, 
2021. This payment and letter are contigent on the Inyo County Board of Supervisors approving 
the 2020-2021 fiscal year mid-year budget admendments. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Department of Agriculture Project Coordinator, 
Alexandra Barbella, at (760) 878-8446. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Nathan Reade 
Agricultural Commissioner 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Rhiannon Baker 
 
SUBJECT:  California Department of Technology Snowflake Database Data Use and Disclosure Agreement 
between Inyo County Health and Human Services and California Department of Public Health (CDPH) 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the California Department of Technology Snowflake Database Data Use and Disclosure 
Agreement between County of Inyo Health and Human Services and the California Department of Public Health 
for the purpose of the receipt and use of data relating to COVID-19 in Skilled Nursing Facilities and General 
Acute Care Hospitals, and authorize the HHS Director to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The California Department of Technology Snowflake Database (CDTSD) is a system of applications that 
encompasses the core surveillance and reporting application Data Warehouse (DW), and Data Distribution Portal 
(DDP) that the CDPH has implemented for web-based COVID-19 reporting and surveillance. The system is 
intended to improve the efficiency of surveillance activities and the early detection of public health events through 
the collection of more complete and timely surveillance information on a state-wide basis. CDTSD is a secure, 
web-based electronic system for health care providers to report COVID-19 cases and data and for CDPH to 
report to local Public Health jurisdictions. CDTSD is the system of record for COVID-19 disease surveillance data 
within California and allows for 24/7/365 reporting and receipt of results.

The Department of Health and Human Services is respectfully requesting your Board's approval of the Data Use 
and Disclosure Agreement with the California Department of Public Health.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this agreement therefore terminating Inyo County Health and Human 
Services' ability to receive COVID-19 related data necessary in case investigation, disease prevention, and 
surveillance. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
There is no funding associated with this agreement.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. California Department of Technology Snowflake Database Data Use And Disclosure Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 1/15/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/15/2021
Anna Scott Approved - 1/15/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 1/15/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 1/19/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/19/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 1/20/2021



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 1 of 15 

California Department of Technology Snowflake Database 
Data Use And Disclosure Agreement 

 
 
This California Department of Technology Snowflake Database (CDTSD) Data Use And Disclosure Agreement 
(“Agreement”) sets forth the information privacy and security requirements that the ____________________  
Department of Public Health (“Participant”), and the California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) are 
obligated to follow with respect to all CDTSD Data (as defined herein) collected or created within the CDTSD. 
By entering into this Agreement, CDPH and Participant agree to protect the privacy and provide for the security 
of all CDTSD Data in compliance with all state and federal laws applicable to the CDTSD Data. Permission to 
receive, use and disclose CDTSD Data requires execution of this Agreement that describes the terms, 
conditions, and limitations of Participant’s collection, use, and disclosure of the CDTSD Data. 
 

I. Supersession: This Agreement supersedes any prior CDTSD Agreement between CDPH and 
Participant. 
 

II. Definitions: For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply: 
 

A. Breach: “Breach” means: 
  

1. the acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of CDTSD Data in violation of any state or 
federal law or in a manner not permitted under this Agreement that compromises the 
privacy, security or integrity of the information. For purposes of this definition, 
“compromises the privacy, security or integrity of the information” means poses a 
significant risk of f inancial, reputational, or other harm to an individual or individuals; 
or 
 

2. the same as the definition of "breach of the security of the system" set forth in 
California Civil Code section 1798.29, subdivision (f). The “system” referenced in 
Civil Code section 1798.29 shall be interpreted for purposes of this Agreement to 
reference the CDTSD, only. 
 

B. CDTSD Data:  “CDTSD Data” means data in CDTSD cloud data warehouse supported and 
maintained by California Department of Technology (CDT) including resident and health 
care worker test status, facility staffing levels, and requested needs for the purposes of case 
investigation, disease prevention, and surveillance.   

 

1. CDTSD Data specifically includes information contained in or derived from the 
following: 

 

a. Confidential Morbidity Report (CMR) required by Title 17 of the 
California Code of Regulations CCR sections 2500, 2593, 2641.5-
2643.20, and 2800-2812 Reportable Diseases and Conditions. 

 
b. Laboratory Test and Result information required by Title 17 of the 

CCR sections 2505 and 2641.5 - 2643.20. 
 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 2 of 15 

c. Communicable Disease Control Report Forms (required for specific 
diseases and conditions that are mandated by state laws and 
regulations to be reported by healthcare providers and laborator ies 
to local health officers). 

 

d. Data collected through facility level surveys detailing total resident 
and health care worker confirmed cases of SARS-CoV-2 and 
influenza, as well as deaths related to these infections. 

 
2. CDTSD Data specifically excludes the following information: 
 

a.  [Reserved.] 
 

C. Disclosure: “Disclosure” means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in 
any other manner of information.   

 
 

D. Security Incident: “Security Incident” means: 
 

1. an attempted breach;  
 

2. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of CDTSD Data in the 
CDTSD, in violation of any state or federal law or in a manner not permitted under 
this Agreement; or 

 
3. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of, or interference with, 

system operations in the CDTSD that negatively impacts the confidentiality, 
availability or integrity of CDTSD Data, or hinders or makes impossible the receipt, 
collection, creation, storage, transmission or use of CDTSD Data in the CDTSD. 

 
E. Use: “Use” means the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or analysis 

of information. 
 

F. Workforce Member: “Workforce Member” means an employee, volunteer, trainee, or other 
person whose conduct, in the performance of work for Participant, is under the direct control 
of Participant, whether or not they are paid by the Participant. 
 

G. [Reserved.]   
 

III. Background and Purpose:  The CDTSD is a system of applications that encompasses the core 
surveillance and reporting application Data Warehouse (DW), and Data Distribution Portal (DDP) 
that the CDPH has implemented for web-based SARS-CoV-2 reporting and surveillance. The 
purpose of this application is to improve the efficiency of surveillance activities and the early 
detection of public health events through the collection of more complete and timely surveillance 
information on a state-wide basis. CDTSD is a secure, web-based electronic solution for health care 
providers to report cases of conditions of public health interest and for CDPH to report to LHDs and 
the general public.  CDTSD is an integral part of the overall California public health emergency 
preparedness and response strategy where completion and implementation of CDTSD allows for 
24/7/365 reporting and receipt of notifiable conditions. CDTSD is the system of  record f or SARS-
CoV-2 disease surveillance data within California.  



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 3 of 15 

 
IV. Legal Authority for Collection, Use and Disclosure of CDTSD Data:  The legal authority for CDPH 

and Participant to collect, use and disclose CDTSD Data is set forth in Attachment A, which is made 
part of this Agreement by this reference. 

 
V. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) Authority: 

 
A. CDPH and CDTSD HIPAA Status: CDPH is a “hybrid entity” for purposes of applicability of  

the federal regulations entitled "Standards for Privacy of Individually Identif iable Health 
Information" ("Privacy Rule") (45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162, and 164) promulgated pursuant to 
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) (42 U.S.C. §§ 
1320d - 1320d-8) (as amended by Subtitle D Privacy, of the Health Information Technology 
for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act (Pub. L. 111–5, 123 Stat. 265–66)). The 
CDTSD has not been designated by the CDPH as, and is not, one of the HIPAA-covered 
“health care components” of CDPH. (45 C.F.R. § 164.504(c)(3)(iii).) The legal basis f or this 
determination is as follows: 
 

1. The CDTSD is not a component of CDPH that would meet the definition of a covered 
entity or business associate if it were a separate legal entity. (45 C.F.R. §§ 
160.105(a)(2)(iii)(D); 160.103 (definition of “covered entity”)); And 
 

2. The HIPAA Privacy Rule creates a special rule for a subset of public health activities 
whereby HIPAA cannot preempt state law if, “[t]he provision of state law, including 
state procedures established under such law, as applicable, provides for the 
reporting of disease or injury, child abuse, birth, or death, or for the conduct of public 
health surveillance, investigation, or intervention.”  (45 C.F.R. § 60.203(c) [HITECH 
Act, § 13421, sub. (a)].) [NOTE: See State laws and regulations listed in Attachment 
A; and, 

 
B. Parties Are “Public Health Authorities”: CDPH and Participant are each a “public health 

authority” as that term is defined in the Privacy Rule.  (45 C.F.R. §§ 164.501; 
164.512(b)(1)(i).)   

 
C. CDTSD Data Use and Disclosure Permitted by HIPAA: To the extent a disclosure or use of  

CDTSD Data may also be considered a disclosure or use of “Protected Health Information” 
(PHI) of an individual, as that term is defined in Section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal 
Regulations, the following Privacy Rule provisions apply to permit such CDTSD Data 
disclosure and/or use by CDPH and Participant, without the consent or authorization of the 
individual who is the subject of the PHI: 

 
1. HIPAA cannot preempt state law if, “[t]he provision of state law, including state 

procedures established under such law, as applicable, provides for the reporting of 
disease or injury, child abuse, birth, or death, or for the conduct of public health 
surveillance, investigation, or intervention.” (45 C.F.R. § 60.203(c) [HITECH Act, § 
13421, sub. (a)].) [NOTE: See state laws and regulations listed in Attachment A]; 
 

2. A covered entity may disclose PHI to a “public health authority” carrying out public 
health activities authorized by law; (45 C.F.R. § 164.512(b).);  
 

3. A covered entity may use or disclose protected health information to the extent that 
such use or disclosure is required by law and the use or disclosure complies with 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 4 of 15 

and is limited to the relevant requirements of such law.”  (Title 45 C.F.R. §§ 
164.502 (a)(1)(vii), 164.512(a))(1).)  and, 

 
4. Other, non-public health-specific provisions of HIPAA may also provide the legal 

basis for all or specific CDTSD Data uses and disclosures.  
 

D. No HIPAA Business Associate Agreement or Relationship Between CDPH and Participant: 
This Agreement and the relationship it memorializes between CDPH and Participant do not 
constitute a business associate agreement or business associate relationship pursuant to 
Title 45, CFR, Part 160.103 (definition of “business associate”). The basis for this 
determination is Section 160.203(c) of Title 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations (see, 
also, [HITECH Act, § 13421, subdivision. (a)].) [NOTE: See state laws and regulations listed 
in Attachment A]. Accordingly, this Agreement is not intended to nor at any time shall result 
in or be interpreted or construed as to create a business associate relationship between 
CDPH and Participant. By the execution of this Agreement, CDPH and Participant expressly 
disclaim the existence of any business associate relationship. 

 
VI. Permitted Disclosures: The Participant and its workforce members and agents, shall safeguard the 

CDTSD Data to which they have access to from unauthorized disclosure. The Participant, and its 
workforce members and agents, shall not disclose any CDTSD Data for any purpose other than 
carrying out the Participant's obligations under the statutes and regulations set forth in Attachment 
A, or as otherwise allowed or required by state or federal law.  
 

VII. Permitted Use: The Participant, and its workforce members and agents, shall safeguard the CDTSD 
Data to which they have access to from unauthorized use. The Participant, and its workforce 
members and agents, shall not use any CDTSD Data for any purpose other than carrying out the 
Participant's obligations under the statutes and regulations set forth in Attachment A or as otherwise 
allowed or required by state or federal law. 

 
VIII. Restricted Disclosures and Uses:  

 

A. [Reserved.] 
 

IX. Safeguards: Participant shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the privacy, confidentiality, security, integrity, and availability 
of CDTSD Data. The Participant shall develop and maintain a written information privacy and 
security program that includes administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate to the 
size and complexity of the Participant’s operations and the nature and scope of its activities in 
performing its legal obligations and duties (including performance of its duties and obligations under 
this Agreement), and which incorporates the requirements of Section X, Security, below. Participant 
shall provide CDPH with Participant’s current and updated policies. 
 

X. Security: The Participant shall take all steps necessary to ensure the continuous security of all 
computerized data systems containing CDTSD Data. These steps shall include, at a minimum: 

 
A. Providing a level and scope of security that is at least comparable to the level and scope of  

security established by the Office of Management and Budget in OMB Circular No. A-130, 
Appendix III- Security of Federal Automated Information Systems, and/or NIST 800-53 
(version 4 or subsequent approved versions) which sets forth guidelines for automated 
information systems in Federal agencies; and 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 5 of 15 

 
B. in case of a conflict between any of the security standards contained in any of the 

aforementioned sources of security standards, the most stringent shall apply. The most 
stringent means that safeguard which provides the highest level of protection to CDTSD 
Data from breaches and security incidents.  

  
XI. Security Officer: The Participant shall designate a Security Officer to oversee its compliance with 

this Agreement and for communicating with CDPH on matters concerning this Agreement. Such 
designation is set forth in Attachment B, which is made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 
 

XII. Training: The Participant shall provide training on its obligations under this Agreement, at its own 
expense, to all of its workforce members who assist in the performance of Participant’s obligations 
under this Agreement, or otherwise use or disclose CDTSD Data. 

 
A. The Participant shall require each workforce member who receives training to receive and 

sign a certif ication, indicating the workforce member’s name and the date on which the 
training was completed. 
 

B. The Participant shall retain each workforce member’s written certif ications for CDPH 
inspection for a period of three years following contract termination. 

 
XIII. Workforce member Discipline: Participant shall discipline such workforce members who 

intentionally violate any provisions of this Agreement, including, if warranted, by termination of 
employment. 
 

XIV. Participant Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities: 
 

A. Notification to CDPH of Breach or Security Incident:  The Participant shall notify CDPH 
immediately by telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of a breach (as 
defined in this Agreement), or within twenty-four (24) hours by email or fax of the 
discovery of any security incident (as defined in this Agreement).  Notif ication shall be 
provided to the CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief 
Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XX(G), below. If 
the breach or security incident occurs after business hours or on a weekend or holiday and 
involves CDTSD Data in electronic or computerized form, notif ication to CDPH shall be 
provided by calling the CDPH IT Service Desk at the telephone numbers listed in Section 
XX(G),), below. For purposes of this Section, breaches and security incidents shall be 
treated as discovered by Participant as of the first day on which such breach or security 
incident is known to the Participant, or, by exercising reasonable diligence would have been 
known to the Participant. Participant shall be deemed to have knowledge of a breach or 
security incident if such breach or security incident is known, or by exercising reasonable 
diligence would have been known, to any person, other than the person committing the 
breach or security incident, who is a workforce member or agent of the Participant. 
 
Participant shall take: 
 

1. prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the breach or 
security incident and to protect the CDTSD operating environment; and, 
 

2. any action pertaining to a breach required by applicable federal or state laws, 
including, specifically, California Civil Code section 1798.29. 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 6 of 15 

 
B. Investigation of Breach:  The Participant shall immediately investigate such breach or 

security incident, and within seventy-two (72) hours of the discovery, shall inform the CDPH 
Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information Security 
Officer of: 
 

1. what data elements were involved and the extent of the data involved in the breach, 
including, specifically, the number of individuals whose personal information was 
breached; and 
 

2. a description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably believed to have 
improperly used the CDTSD Data and/or a description of the unauthorized persons 
known or reasonably believed to have improperly accessed or acquired the CDTSD 
Data, or to whom it is known (or reasonably believed) to have had the CDTSD Data 
improperly disclosed to them; and 
 

3. a description of where the CDTSD Data is known or believed to have been 
improperly used or disclosed; and 
 

4. a description of the known or probable causes of the breach or security incident; and 
 

5. whether Civil Code section 1798.29 or any other federal or state laws requiring 
individual notif ications of breaches have been triggered. 

 
C. Written Report:  The Participant shall provide a written report of the investigation to the 

CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information 
Security Officer within five (5) working days of the discovery of the breach or security 
incident.  The report shall include, but not be limited to, the information specified above, as 
well as a full, detailed corrective action plan, including information on measures that were 
taken to halt and/or contain the breach or security incident, and measures to be taken to 
prevent the recurrence of such breach or security incident. 
 

D. Notification to Individuals: If notif ication to individuals whose information was breached is 
required under state or federal law, and regardless of whether Participant is considered only 
a custodian and/or non-owner of the CDTSD Data, Participant shall, at its sole expense, and 
at the sole election of CDPH, either: 

 
1. make notif ication to the individuals affected by the breach (including substitute 

notif ication), pursuant to the content and timeliness provisions of such applicable 
state or federal breach notice laws.  The CDPH Privacy Officer shall approve, in 
writing, the time, manner and content of any such notif ications, prior to the 
transmission of such notif ications to the individual(s); or 
 

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its notif ication (including substitute notification) to 
the individuals affected by the breach. 

 
E. Submission of Sample Notif ication to California Attorney General:  If notif ication to more 

than 500 individuals is required pursuant to California Civil Code section 1798.29, 
Participant shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election of CDPH, either: 

 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 7 of 15 

1. electronically submit a single sample copy of the security breach notif ication, 
excluding any personally identif iable information, to the California Attorney General 
pursuant to the format., content and timeliness provisions of Section 1798.29, 
subdivision (e).  Participant shall inform the CDPH Privacy Officer of the time, 
manner and content of any such submissions, prior to the transmission of such 
submissions to the Attorney General; or 

 
2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its submission of a sample copy of the 

notif ication to the California Attorney General. 
 

F. Public Statements:  Participant shall cooperate with CDPH in developing content for any 
public statements regarding Breaches or Security Incidents related to Participant and shall 
not provide any public statements without the express written permission of CDPH. 
Requests for public statement(s) by any non-party about a breach or security incidents shall 
be directed to the CDPH Program Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief  
Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XIII(E), below.  

 
G. CDPH Contact Information: To direct communications to the above referenced CDPH staf f , 

the Participant shall initiate contact as indicated below.  CDPH reserves the right to make 
changes to the contact information by giving written notice to the Participant.  Said changes 
shall not require an amendment to this Agreement.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This space intentionally left blank – Continued on next page.] 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 8 of 15 

 

CDPH Program Manager CDPH Privacy Officer 
CDPH Chief Information 

Security Officer (and CDPH IT 
Service Desk) 

CDPH-CHCQ Duty Officer 
California Department of  
Public Health 
Center for Health Care Quality 
1615 Capitol Avenue, 4th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95899 
California Department of  
Public Health 
 
Email:  
CHCQDutyOfficer@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: (916) 330-0664 
 

Privacy Officer 
Privacy Office, 
c/o Office of Legal Services 
California Department of  
Public Health 
1415 L Street, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Email: privacy@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: (877) 421-9634 
 

Chief Information  
Security Officer 
Information Security Office 
California Department of  
Public Health 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6302 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
 
 
Email:  cdphiso@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: IT Service Desk 
 (916) 440-7000 or 
 (800) 579-0874 
 

 

mailto:CHCQDutyOfficer@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:privacy@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:cdphiso@cdph.ca.gov


 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 9 of 15 

 
XV. CDPH Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities: CDPH shall notify Participant immediately by 

telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of a breach (as defined in this Agreement), or 
within twenty-four (24) hours by email or fax of the discovery of any security incident (as defined in 
this Agreement) that involves CDTSD Data that was created or collected by Participant in the 
CDTSD. Notif ication shall be provided by CDPH to the Participant Representative, using the contact 
information listed in Attachment C, which is made a part of this Agreement by this reference. For 
purposes of this Section, breaches and security incidents shall be treated as discovered by CDPH 
as of the first day on which such breach or security incident is known to CDPH, or, by exercising 
reasonable diligence would have been known to CDPH. CDPH shall be deemed to have knowledge 
of a breach or security incident if such breach or security incident is known, or by exercising 
reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person, other than the person committing the 
breach or security incident, who is a workforce member or agent of CDPH. 

 
A. Participant Contact Information: To direct communications to the Participant’s 

breach/security incident response staff, CDPH shall initiate contact as indicated by 
Participant in Attachment C. Participant’s contact information must be provided to CDPH 
prior to execution of this Agreement. Participant reserves the right to make changes to 
the contact information in Attachment C. Said changes shall not require an amendment 
to this Agreement. 
 

XVI. Compliance with California Health and safety Code Section 121022(h): CDPH and Participant shall 
comply, when required, with California Health and safety Code Section 121022, subdivision (h), 
which provides as follows: “Any potential or actual breach of confidentiality of HIV-related public 
health records shall be investigated by the local health officer, in coordination with the department, 
when appropriate. The local health officer shall immediately report any evidence of an actual breach 
of confidentiality of HIV-related public health records at a city or county level to the department and 
the appropriate law enforcement agency. The department shall investigate any potential or actual 
breach of confidentiality of HIV-related public health records at the state level, and shall report any 
evidence of such a breach of confidentiality to an appropriate law enforcement agency.” 

 
XVII. Indemnification: Each party hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the other party 

from and against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs and other expenses 
(including attorneys’ fees) that result from or arise directly or indirectly out of or in connection with 
any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of Participant or CDPH, its officers, workforce 
members or agents relative to the CDTSD Data, including, without limitation, any violations of 
Participant’s or CDPH’s responsibilities under this Agreement.  
 

XVIII. Term of Agreement:  Unless otherwise terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions set forth 
herein, this Agreement shall remain in effect for three (3) years after the latest signature date in the 
signature block below. After three (3) years, this Agreement will expire without further action. If  the 
parties wish to extend this Agreement, they may do so by reviewing, updating, and reauthorizing 
this Agreement. If one or both of the parties wish to terminate this Agreement prematurely, they 
may do so upon 30 days advanced notice.  CDPH may also terminate this Agreement pursuant to 
Section XIX, below. 
 

XIX. Termination for Cause: 
 

A. Termination Upon Breach: A breach by either party of any provision of this Agreement, as 
determined by CDPH or Participant, shall constitute a material breach of the Agreement and 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 10 of 15 

grounds for immediate termination of the Agreement by CDPH or Participant. At its sole 
discretion, CDPH or Participant may give the breaching party 30 days to cure the breach. 
 

B. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings: CDPH and Participant shall notify the other party if it 
is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding related to a violation of this Agreement. 
CDPH or Participant may terminate the Agreement if the other party is found guilty of a 
criminal violation related to a violation of this Agreement. CDPH or Participant may terminate 
the Agreement if a finding or stipulation that the other party has violated any security or 
privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which the other party is a 
party or has been joined. 

 
XX. Amendment: The parties acknowledge that Federal and State laws relating to information security 

and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this Agreement may be required to provide 
for procedures to ensure compliance with such laws. The parties specifically agree to take such 
action as is necessary to implement new standards and requirements imposed by regulations and 
other applicable laws relating to the security or privacy of CDTSD Data. Upon CDPH’s request, 
Participant agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with CDPH concerning an amendment to this 
Agreement embodying written assurances consistent with new standards and requirements 
imposed by regulations and other applicable laws. CDPH may terminate this Agreement upon thirty 
(30) days written notice in the event: 
 

A. Participant does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this Agreement when 
requested by CDPH pursuant to this Section, or 

 
B. Participant does not enter into an amendment providing assurances regarding the 

safeguarding of CDTSD Data that CDPH in its sole discretion deems sufficient to satisf y 
the standards and requirements of applicable laws and regulations relating to the 
security or privacy of CDTSD Data. 
 

XXI. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings: Each party shall make itself and any 
workforce members or agents assisting in the performance of obligations under this Agreement 
available to the other party at no cost to testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of lit igation 
or administrative proceedings being commenced based upon claimed violation of laws relating to 
security and privacy, which involve inactions or actions by CDPH or Participant, except where 
CDPH and Participant or their workforce members or agents are a named adverse party. 

 
XXII. Disclaimer: CDPH makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Participant with this 

Agreement will be adequate or satisfactory for Participant’s own purposes or that any information in 
Participant’s possession or control, or transmitted or received by Participant, is or will be secure 
from unauthorized use or disclosure. Participant is solely responsible for all decisions made by 
Participant regarding the safeguarding of CDTSD Data. 
 

XXIII. Transfer of Rights: Participant has no right and shall not delegate, assign, or otherwise transf er or 
delegate any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to any other person or entity. Any 
such transfer of rights shall be null and void. 
 

XXIV. No Third-Party Beneficiaries: Nothing express or implied in the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than 
CDPH or Participant, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever. 
 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 11 of 15 

XXV. Interpretation:  The terms and conditions in this Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly as 
necessary to implement and comply with regulations and applicable State and Federal laws. The 
parties agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be resolved in 
favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with Federal and State laws. 
 

XXVI. Survival:  The respective rights and obligations of Participant under Sections VII, IX, XIII and XVII of 
this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 

XXVII. Attachments: The parties mutually agree that the following specified Attachments are part of this 
Agreement: 
 

A. Attachment A: State Law Authority for: (1) Use and Disclosure of CDTSD Data; and, (2) 
Application of HIPAA preemption exception for public health (45 C.F.R. § 160.203(c))”. 
 

B. Attachment B: Participant Breach and Security Incident Contact Information. 
 

XXVIII. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement, including all attachments, constitutes the entire agreement 
between CDPH and Participant. Any and all modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and 
signed by all parties. Any oral representations or agreements between the parties shall be of no 
force or effect.   
 

XXIX. Severability:  The invalidity in whole or in part of any provisions of this Agreement shall not void or 
affect the validity of any other provisions of this Agreement. 
 

XXX. Choice of Law and Venue: The laws of the state of California will govern any dispute from or 
relating to this Agreement. The parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state of Calif ornia 
and federal courts for or in Sacramento and agree that any legal action or proceeding relating to the 
Agreement may only be brought in those courts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This space intentionally left blank – Continued on next page.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 12 of 15 

 
XXXI. Signatures: 

 
IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as follows: 

 
On behalf of the Participant, the undersigned individual hereby attests that he or she is authorized 
to enter into this Agreement and agrees to all the terms specified herein. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________    __________________________ 
Name (Print)       Name (Sign) 
 
 
___________________________    __________________________ 
Title [Health Officer (or other authorized official)]  Date 
 
 
___________________________Department of Public Health 
County/City Name (Print) 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Department of Public Health, the undersigned individual(s) hereby attests that he 
or she is authorized to enter into this Agreement and agrees to all the terms specified herein. 
 
  
 
 
___________________________    __________________________ 
Heidi W. Steinecker      Date 
Deputy Director, Center for Health Care Quality  
California Department of Public Health 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 13 of 15 

Attachment A 
State Law Authority for: 

 (1) Use and Disclosure of CDTSD Data; and,  

(2) Application of HIPAA preemption exception for public health (45 C.F.R. § 160.203(c). 

 
General Authority: 

1) Information Practices Act 
a.  CA Civil Code section 1798.24(e) An agency shall not disclose any personal information in a 

manner that would link the information disclosed to the individual to whom it pertains unless the 
information is disclosed, as follows: (e) To a person, or to another agency where the transfer is 
necessary for the transferee agency to perform its constitutional or statutory duties, and the use 
is compatible with a purpose for which the information was collected and the use or transfer is 
accounted for in accordance with Section 1798.25. With respect to information transferred from 
a law enforcement or regulatory agency, or information transferred to another law enforcement 
or regulatory agency, a use is compatible if the use of the information requested is needed in an 
investigation of unlawful activity under the jurisdiction of the requesting agency or for licensing, 
certif ication, or regulatory purposes by that agency. 

 

Specific Authority: 

1) Functions and Duties of the Department of Public Health, Reportable Diseases and Conditions from 
Providers and Labs 

a. California Health and Safety Code section 120130 
i. Subdivision (a): The department shall establish a list of reportable diseases and 

conditions. For each reportable disease and condition, the department shall specify the 
timeliness requirements related to the reporting of each disease and condition, and the 
mechanisms required for, and the content to be included in, reports made pursuant to 
this section…Those diseases listed as reportable shall be properly reported as required 
to the department by the health officer.” 

ii. Subdivision (g): Commencing July 1, 2009, or within one year of the establishment of a 
state electronic laboratory reporting system, whichever is later, a report generated 
pursuant to this section, or Section 121022, by a laboratory shall be submitted 
electronically in a manner specified by the department. The department shall allow 
laboratories that receive incomplete patient information to report the name of the 
provider who submitted the request to the local health officer. 

b. Title 17. Public Health  Division 1. State Department of Health Services Chapter 4. Preventive 
Medical Service 

i. Article 1 Reporting:  
1. Section 2500: Provider Reporting of Diseases and Conditions to the Local Health 

Officer and Confidentiality of Reports 
2. Section 2501: Investigation of Reported Case, Unusual Disease, or Outbreak of 

Occurrence  
3. Section 2502: Reports by Local Health Officer to State Department of Public 

Health. 
4. Section 2505: Notif ication of Diseases and Conditions by Laboratories  

 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 14 of 15 

2) HIV Specific Laws related to Reporting, Surveillance Sharing and Confidentiality, Penalties for 
Disclosure: 

a. Health and Safety Code section 121022, HIV Reporting by Providers and Labs 
b. Health and Safety Code section 121023, Lab Reporting of CD4+ T-Cell test results 
c. Health and Safety Code section 121025 (b) disclosure of HIV records between state and local 

public health agencies for when the confidential information is necessary to carry out the duties 
of the agency in the investigation, control, or surveillance of disease, as determined by the state 
or local public health agency. 

d. Title 17. Public Health Division 1. State Department of Health Services Chapter 4. Preventive 
Medical Service 

i.  Article 3.5, Reporting of HIV, Sub article 4 Sections: 2641.5-2643.20 
e. California HIV/AIDS-Specific Statutes Pertaining to Confidential Public Health Records and 

Penalties for Disclosures (this list is not comprehensive):  
i. All HIV/AIDS case reports and any HIV/AIDS related information collected or maintained 

by CDPH (or its agents or contractors) or a local health department or agency (or its 
agent or contractors), that may directly or indirectly identify an individual are considered 
confidential public health record(s) under California Health and Safety Code (HSC) 
section 121035(c) and must be handled with the utmost confidentiality.   

ii. HSC section 121025(a) prohibits the disclosure of HIV/AIDS-related public health 
records that contain any personally identifying information to any third-party, unless 
authorized by law for public health purposes, or by the written consent of the individual 
identif ied in the record or his/her guardian/conservator.  Except as permitted by law, any 
person who negligently discloses information contained in a confidential public health 
record to a third party is subject to a civil penalty of up to $5,000 plus court costs, as 
provided in HSC section 121025(e)(1).  Any person who willfully or maliciously discloses 
the content of a public health record, except as authorized by law, is subject to a civil 
penalty of $5,000-$25,000 plus court costs as provided by HSC 121025(e)(2).  Any 
willfully, malicious, or negligent disclosure of information contained in a public health 
record in violation of state law that results in economic, bodily, psychological harm to a 
person named in the record is a misdemeanor, punishable by imprisonment for a period 
of up to one year and/or a fine of up to $25,000 plus court costs [HSC section 
121025(e)(3)].  Any person who is guilty of a confidentiality infringement of the foregoing 
type may be sued by the injured party and shall be personally liable for all actual 
damages incurred for economic, bodily, or psychological harm as a result of the breach 
[HSC section 121025(e)(4)].  Each disclosure in violation of California law is a separate, 
actionable offense [HSC section 121025(e)(5).  

 

 



 

CDPH CDTSD DUDA (12-2020)   Page 15 of 15 

Attachment B 

Participant Contact Information 

The following contact information must be provided prior to execution of this Agreement. 

Participant Program Manager Participant Privacy Officer 
Participant Chief Information 

Security Officer (and IT Service 
Desk Telephone) 

XXXX 
 
Email: XXXX 
Telephone:  (XXX) XXX-XXXX 
 

XXXX 
 
Email: XXXX 
Telephone:  (XXX) XXX-XXXX 
 

XXXX 
 
Email: XXXX 
Telephone:  (XXX) XXX-XXXX 
 
Telephone: IT Service Desk 
   (XXX) XXX-XXXX  
 

 

 



County of Inyo

Probation
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Jeffrey Thomson 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of contract with Inyo Council for the Arts Grants in Support of Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Inyo Council for the Arts of Bishop, CA for 
the provision of an after-school music and arts program to youth in an amount not to exceed $12,600 for the 
period of February 8, 2021 through December 31, 2021, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 
2021-2022 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Probation Department has a great opportunity to partner with the Inyo Council for the Arts (ICA) to provide 
an after-school music and arts program to youth throughout Inyo County. The program will be administered by 
ICA, with collaboration and financial support from the Inyo County Probation Department (ICPD). Based on the 
evidence that arts-based programs serving at-risk populations cab be therapeutic in themselves, the program will 
generally focus on improving academic achievement by providing passionate teaching artists who specialize in 
working with youth, a safe and comfortable studio space, and thoughtful and engaging lesson plans.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Inyo County Probation Department has renewed this contract with Inyo Council for the Arts for the past two (2) 
Fiscal Years.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the contract with Inyo Council for the Arts, however this is not 
recommended as funds have been identified and these types of after-school programs are a great benefit to our 
area youth.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
This contract would be expended out of the Juvenile Institutions Budget 023100, Professional Services Object 
Code 5265 and funded from YOBG grant monies. 
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. FY 20-21 Inyo Council for the Arts Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Krystal Leonard Created/Initiated - 1/13/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/14/2021
Krystal Leonard Approved - 1/14/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/14/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/14/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/19/2021
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 1/19/2021
Krystal Leonard Approved - 1/19/2021
Jeffrey Thomson Final Approval - 1/20/2021



























County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Letter in Support of ESTA Grant Application 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter of support for Eastern Sierra Transit 
Authority's FTA Section 5304 grant application for fleet electrification planning.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority is applying for a Federal Transit Act Section 5304 grant through Caltrans and is 
asking the lnyo County Board of Supervisors to submit a letter to Caltrans in support of its application.

According to ESTA, the grant funding is being sought to fund its efforts to plan for zero-emission vehicles in its 
fleet. Pages 56-57 of Inyo County’s Regional Transportation Plan, as quoted in the attached letter, support 
ESTA's efforts.

Staff recommends the Board review the draft letter, suggest any desired revisions and/or additions, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign the letter, which ESTA is hoping to have in its possession by February 8.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the letter of support but this is not recommended, as ESTA needs 
funding assistance for planning efforts critical to addressing future public transit needs in the Eastern Sierra.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority
 
FINANCING:
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving the letter of support.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Letter Supporting ESTA FTA Grant Application
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 1/28/2021
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 1/28/2021



 

                                                                       
February 2, 2021

California Department of Transportation
Division of Transportation Planning
1120 N Street
Sacramento, CA 95814

Dear Grant Administrator:

On behalf of Inyo County Board of Supervisors, I would like to express our support for the 
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority's FTA Section 5304 grant application for fleet electrification 
planning.

Pages 56-57 of Inyo County’s Regional Transportation Plan states:

“AIR QUALITY
Air quality is a significant consideration in planning for and evaluation of transportation systems. 
Both state and federal law contain significant regulations concerning the impact of transportation 
projects on air quality. Under state law, local and regional air pollution control districts have the 
primary responsibility for controlling air pollutant emissions from all sources other than vehicular 
sources. Control of vehicular air pollution is the responsibility of the California Air Resources 
Board (CARB). CARB divides California into air basins and adopts standards of quality for each 
air basin. Inyo County is part of the Great Basin Valleys Air Basin with air quality managed by 
the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) established standards for air 
pollutants that affect the public health and welfare. Likewise, CARB established state standards 
and are higher than the federal standards. The six criteria pollutants are Carbon Monoxide (CO), 
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2), Ozone (O3), Particulate Matter (PM), Lead (Pb), and Sulfur Dioxide 
(SO2).

Inyo County is considered “in attainment” or unclassified for every federal air quality standard 
except for the PM-10 standard, which is not in attainment in the Owens Valley area. As for state 
standards, Inyo County is not in attainment for PM-2.5 and PM-10.

PM-2.5 and PM-10 are caused by a combination of sources, including fugitive dust, combustion 
from automobiles and heating, road salt, conifers, and others. The difference between the two 
pollutants is the size of the particles—PM-10 is particulate matter with an average maximum size 
of 10 microns and PM-2.5 is PM that is 2.5 microns or smaller. Constituents that comprise 
suspended particulates include organic, sulfate, and nitrate aerosols that are formed in the air 
from emitted hydrocarbons, chloride, sulfur oxides, and oxides of nitrogen. Particulates reduce 
visibility and pose a health hazard by causing respiratory and related problems. In the Owens 
Valley area, PM-10 pollution is directly related to windblown dust from the dry Owens Lake Bed. 

MEMBERS  OF THE  BOARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI    
JENNIFER  ROESER
MATT  KINGSLEY     

CLINT G. QUILTER      
Clerk of the Board

DARCY ELLIS
Assistant Clerk of the Board

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526
TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373 

e-mail: dellis@inyocounty.us



The Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District prepared a SIP for PM-10 in 2008 with a 
2013 amendment. The majority of the SIP addresses mitigation measures for LADWP to reduce 
windblown dust in the Owens Lake area. The plan does not attribute PM-10 levels to 
transportation. However, as indicated in the SIP and the input letter from the Great Basin Unified 
Air Pollution Control District regarding this RTP, all transportation projects must comply with 
district rules 400 – 402, asphalt plants require district permitting, diesel vehicles must comply 
with state regulations, and PM10 emissions must be quantified for transportation-related projects 
in the Owens Valley.

CLIMATE CHANGE
Global climate change or “global warming” is an important issue which is closely related to 
transportation. Climate change is caused by the release of greenhouse gases (GHG’s) such as 
carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydro fluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur 
hexafluoride into the atmosphere that traps heat and increases temperatures near the earth’s 
surface. Motorized vehicles emit carbon dioxide and are large contributors to GHG emissions. In 
fact, according to the CARB GHG Inventory for 2012, transportation accounts for roughly 37.5 
percent of total GHG emissions in California. Forecasted, long-term consequences of climate 
change range from a rise in the sea level to a significant loss of the Sierra snowpack. Despite 
potentially devastating long term affects, climate change does not have immediately visible effects 
such as smog. However, GHG emissions are an important air quality issue which needs to be 
addressed in regional transportation planning documents. State climate change policies and 
strategies to further reduce GHG emissions locally in Inyo County are discussed further in 
Chapters 3 and 4.”

These sections clearly support ESTA’s efforts to plan for zero emissions vehicles.

As a member of our communities, and elected officials, the Board can attest to Eastern Sierra Transit's 
dedication to serving the needs of Inyo County. Their staff understands the needs of our community and 
provides the highest quality of service to the entire region.

The regional and local services provided by ESTA are beneficial to Inyo County and the Eastern Sierra 
region as a whole. Please feel welcome to contact Mike Errante, Director of Public Works, with any 
questions at merrante@inyocounty.us or (760) 878-0201 with any questions.

Sincerely,

Jeff Griffiths, Chair
Inyo County Board of Supervisors



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. request to assign Franchise Agreement to Madera Disposal dba 
Bishop Waste Disposal. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board consider request from Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. to assign the Franchise Agreement 
Between the County of Inyo and Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. for Collection of Solid Waste from 
Residential and Commercial Customers (Agreement) to Madera Disposal Systems, Inc. dba Bishop Waste 
Disposal, and either:
A) approve Preferred Septic and Disposal’s request and direct staff to prepare the Resolution required by Section 
17.01 of the agreement, 
B) find that the request is not reasonable because assigning the Agreement to the only remaining franchisee is 
contrary to the intent of the agreement: “to provide Customers and the County with improved Collection Services 
while maintaining the benefits of competition” (Section 10.01), or
C) Direct staff to work with the existing waste haulers to develop an amendment or replacement for the existing 
franchise agreement that would allow Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. to sell its stock while maintaining the 
opportunity for a second franchisee to enter the Inyo County solid waste collection market (staff 
recommendation).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Mr. Dale Comontofski, President of Preferred Septic and Disposal Inc. formally submitted a written request, dated 
December 18, 2020, (attached) to transfer its Franchise Agreement to Madera Disposal Systems, Inc., dba 
Bishop Waste Disposal. The letter was submitted in accordance with the terms of Franchise Agreement. Section 
16.01(b) says, “Franchisee may not Assign this Agreement except upon prior written consent of the County 
expressed by resolution.”  The Assignment that Mr. Comontofski is requesting is defined in Section 16.01(c)(1) 
which states, “selling, exchanging or otherwise transferring effective control of management of the Franchisee 
(through sale, exchange or other transfer of outstanding stock or otherwise.” Additionally, Mr. Comotofski has 
submitted a check for $5,000 as a good faith deposit toward the Franchise Transfer fee to cover all direct and 
indirect costs in accordance with Section 16.01(f).

Section 16.01(e) lists conditions that must be satisfied before the County is obligated to consider a proposal. The 
contract with the full text is attached and the elements are paraphrased here:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. Ninety days written notice 
2. Assignee must be qualified by financial condition, background, and     experience, to be able to fully assume 
and satisfactorily perform all     of Franchisee’s obligations. 
3. Franchisee must not be in default under any of the material terms     and conditions
4. Assignee must be willing to assume all Franchise obligations. 

While this transaction appears to meet all of the criteria for an assignee, Bishop Waste is an existing franchisee, 
and assignment of the Agreement would leave one large waste hauler servicing the area. While the County is 
happy with the services provided by Bishop Waste and it appears to have the means to absorb the business of 
Preferred Waste, this transaction appears contrary to the intent of the County’s policy, which is referenced in 
Section 10.01 of the Franchise Agreement as being, “to provide Customers and the County with improved 
Collection Services while maintaining the benefits of open competition.” Additionally, based on review of historical 
documentation during the creation of the franchise agreement, competition was intended to provide the 
opportunity for smaller businesses to compete through the imposition of a floor rate, which is a minimum amount 
that any hauler may charge for services. The theory is that without a floor rate, a large waste hauler would have 
the ability to undercut the prices of a smaller company, forcing the small company out of business, at which time 
the large company could exercise free will in price setting. Therefore, if your Board determines that the transfer is 
appropriate, staff recommends making it conditional on a contract amendment to change the floor rate to a 
ceiling rate, and addressing quality control requirements that would otherwise be a function of competition. 

Another consideration for you Board is the attached letter from D&S Waste. Upon learning of Preferred Septic 
and Disposal’s intent to sell the business, they submitted the attached letter declaring their interest in expanding 
to Inyo County. They have been in the waste hauling business for 43 years and currently operate out of 
Yerington and Mono County. While there is no provision in the current franchise agreement to add a waste 
disposal company, the letter demonstrates that there are competitors interested in the market. 

While it is not the County’s intent to interfere with the sale of a private business, it also should be cautious not to 
assist in the creation of a local monopoly or create barriers to competition. The existing Franchise Agreement has 
certain safeguards that “level the playing field” and reduce risk for a smaller business while providing competitive 
benefits to our community such as maintaining affordable pricing and keeping standards of customer service 
high. Therefore, staff recommends option #3 which will support the sale while maintaining a place in the market 
for smaller competitors.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The County is responsible for protection of public health and the environment. The County is authorized and 
required to provide solid waste handling services to its citizens under the provision of the California Integrated 
Waste Management Act, which is under the California Public Resources Code, Section 40000 et. Seq., including 
source reduction, recycling, composting, and the collection, transfer and disposal of solid waste within the 
unincorporated County area. Solid Waste services within the City of Bishop are administered by the County 
pursuant to a joint Solid Waste Management Plan. 

Effective May 1, 2019, the County switched from three year agreement with the waste haulers to the current 
Franchise Agreements with Bishop Waste Disposal and Preferred Septic and Disposal, Inc. to provide those 
businesses providing solid waste handling services in Inyo County with certainty as to the long-term viability of 
their enterprises and to clarify the County’s ability to specify and regulate those services, while continuing to 
provide the benefits of a non-exclusive permit or franchise system. 

The Franchise Agreement expires on December 31, 2026 with limited options for termination or transfer without 
amending the agreement.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Preferred Septic and Disposal
Madera Disposal Systems, Inc. dba Bishop Disposal

 
FINANCING:
Preferred Septic has submitted a deposit of $5,000 to be applied towards the direct and indirect costs of the 
transfer. Recovery of costs is capped at $10,000 per the Franchise Agreement.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Preferred Franchise Agreement 2019
2. Preferred Franchise Assignment Letter 12-18-20
3. D&S Letter to Supervisors 2021
 
APPROVALS:
Leslie Chapman Created/Initiated - 1/27/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/27/2021
Leslie Chapman Approved - 1/27/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/27/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/28/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 1/28/2021

























































































































































































D & S Waste Removal, Inc.
95A East #3

Yerington, NV. 89447
775-277-0143

January 21, 2021

Honorable Inyo County Board of Supervisors,
Clint Quilter, County Administrator
Leslie Chapman, Assistant County Administrator
Fred Aubrey, Recycling and Waste Management

Dear Inyo County Representatives,

My name is Kevin Brown.  I am the co-owner of D&S Waste Removal Inc. operating in Yerington Nevada and 
Mono County California.  Our company has been successfully operating in the residential and commercial 
refuse market for over 42 years in Nevada, and 18 years in Mono County.  As an upfront matter, my brother 
and I are interested in expanding our refuse business into Inyo County if the proposed sale of Preferred 
Septic and Disposal to Waste Connections goes through.  As an operator of a relatively small refuse 
company, I am familiar with the way large publicly traded national refuse businesses come into a smaller 
market and acquire small companies with the goal of becoming the sole operator in the region or county.  
After achieving that goal, they can dictate pricing and keep out competition by price manipulation.

As a case in point, the current proposed situation in Inyo County of two franchised operators (one large and 
one locally owned) whereby one purchases the other with common national ownership; the opportunity 
for price manipulation to eliminate competition and control pricing abounds.  

Removing the floor rate and setting only a ceiling rate will let either Franchisee temporarily discount 
services, or even give free service, which in turn is money out of the County budget.  That is a strategic way 
of keeping competition out.  Local small businesses do not have the funds to deeply discount services 
where large corporations do.  No small business will survive against solely a ceiling rate.  Eventually when 
Waste Connections combines the two business into one it will keep any other business from coming into 
the County as the second Franchisee.  Without a price floor, there will be no opportunity for a new startup 
to enter the market and provide healthy competition.

I believe that it is in the best interest of the County and its residents to keep the floor rate in place and to 
maintain two or more independent Franchisees instead of one corporation passing as two.  Also, to set a 
ceiling rate so that if the large corporation does come in as one without competition, it will protect the 
residents and business from excessive rates.   As previously stated, D & S Waste has been and is still 
interested in servicing Inyo County and will be pursuing this if available.

I am available to discuss this further if needed anytime at 775-277-0143 and I will also be attending the 
zoom meeting when it is scheduled.  Thank you for supporting small businesses and thank you for your 
time. 

Kevin Brown, Owner-Manager



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Ashley Helms 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Budget Amendment to the Bishop Air Rehab Runway 12.30 Budget, Contract Change 
Orders and Notice of Completion for the Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Bishop Air Rehab Runway 12-30 Budget (631100) as 
follows:
1. Increase estimated revenue in Federal Grants Revenue Code 4555 by $492,066;
2. Increase appropriations in Construction in Progress Object Code 5700 by $492,066;
3. Decrease appropriations in Professional Services Object Code 5265 by $40,265;
4. Increase appropriations in External Charges Object Code 5124 by $40,265 (4/5ths vote required);
B) Approve the proposed Resolution No. 2021-14, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Ratifying Change Orders to the Contract with Granite Construction Inc. for the Runway 
12-30 Rehabilitation Project at the Bishop Airport," and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and
C) Approve the proposed Resolution No. 2021-15, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Bishop Airport - Runway 
12-30 Rehabilitation Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the July 14, 2020 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board awarded the construction contract for the 
Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project at the Bishop Airport (Project) to Granite Construction Inc, of Watsonville, 
CA in the amount of $6,487,274. The final construction contract amount (not including construction 
engineering/inspection) is $6,979,339.43. 

On December 7, 2020 the final inspection was performed, and the project has been determined to be complete to 
the satisfaction of the Public Works Director and the project engineer. Accordingly, the Director is requesting that 
the Board adopt the Resolution ratifying contract change orders and the Resolution authorizing the recording of 
the Notice of Completion, which accepts the completed improvements. 

In addition to formally accepting the work, the Notice of Completion begins the period during which stop notices 
may be placed against the work. In the event that no stop notices are filed, the retention shall be returned to the 
contractor.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
7/14/2020  Board awards contract to Granite Construction Inc.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the resolutions. Consequently, the project and contract change orders 
would not be formally accepted and the Notice of Completion could not be filed. Choosing not to approve the 
Resolution is not recommended because it will extend the period during which stop notices can be submitted and 
will delay the release of retention to the Contractor. 

The Board could choose not to approve the budget amendment, which would also prevent payment of the 
retention to the Contractor.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
FAA
 
FINANCING:
The construction contract is funded by the FAA’s Airport Improvement Program, which is reimbursing the County 
for one hundred percent (100%) of the project costs. The contract change order work is eligible for 
reimbursement. Public Works will request an additional 7% in federal grant funding during the grant closeout.

The reimbursable costs were paid through budget unit 631100, Bishop Air Rehab, object code 5700, 
Construction in Progress.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2021-1-05 BIH Runway 12-30 Rehab Change Order Resolution
2. Notice of Completion Resolution
3. Notice of Completion Bishop Airport Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 1/20/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/21/2021
Ashley Helms Approved - 1/25/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 1/26/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 1/26/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 1/27/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/26/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/27/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 1/27/2021
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 1/28/2021



RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -______

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

RATIFYING CHANGE ORDERS TO THE CONTRACT WITH QUALCON 
CONTRACTORS INC FOR THE RUNWAY 12-30 REHABILITATION PROJECT AT 

THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2020, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors awarded the contract for 
the Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project at the Bishop Airport (“the Contract”) to Granite 
Construction Inc, of Watsonville, CA (“the Contractor”) in the amount of $6,487,274;

WHEREAS, in the course of completing the work on this Contract, several contract change 
orders were necessary to account for abandoned light bases that were not identified during the 
design phase, type A-1 crack repair (less than 1 inch) that was not quantifiable prior to runway 
milling, and to settle disputed work relating to concrete trenches and light bases in the runway 
shoulder.

WHEREAS, the changes were agreed to by the Contractor and the Federal Aviation 
Administration;

WHEREAS, these modifications necessitated three change orders to the Contract as summarized 
below:

Contract Change 
Order No.

Description of Work Amount

1 Remove old light cans and delete temporary 
striping bid items 

-$29,233.50

2 A-1 crack repairs $152,380.00
3 Lower concrete trenches, lower light cans and 

remove delamination at Taxiway F
$18,066.84

WHEREAS, three balancing change orders were required to account for contract quantities that 
differed from the bid quantities:

Contract Change 
Order No.

Description of Work Amount

4 A-2 and A-3 crack repair and runway asphalt 
quantities

 
$209,067.07 

5 Runway milling, runway shoulder Full Depth 
Reclamation, cement and asphalt quantities 

 
$117,170.66 

6 Striping and Bid Additive 1 asphalt quantities  $24,614.35 



WHEREAS, these change orders were authorized by the Inyo County Director of Public Works 
pursuant to the authority granted to him by Inyo County Board of Supervisors on July 14, 2020 
and California Public Contract Code section 20142;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the Board of Supervisors ratifies and approves the payment of the change orders 
listed above pursuant to California Public Contract Code section 20142.

2. That the Board of Supervisors ratifies and approves the payment of the four change 
orders listed above notwithstanding any contrary provisions of the Inyo County Code, 
including but not limited to sections 11.05.210 and 11.05.220.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
Jeff Griffith, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By: _____________________________
Darcy Ellis, Assistant
Assistant Clerk of the Board



RESOLUTION #2021 - __

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

FOR THE
Bishop Airport – Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project 

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of 
Inyo, has determined that the Bishop Airport – Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project has been 
completed by Granite Construction Inc, of Watsonville, CA in accordance with the Project Plans 
and Specifications.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of 
Completion pertaining to the  Bishop Airport – Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project.

Passed, approved and adopted this              day of                                 , 2021 by the following 
vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clint Quilter, Clerk

by 
Assistant Clerk of the Board



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

County of Inyo
c/o Director of Public Works
Public Works Department
168 N. Edwards Street
PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA  93526

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1. A work of improvement known as the  Bishop Airport – Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project on 
the property hereinafter described, was completed on December 7, 2020  and was accepted by the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors on,                      .

2. The property on which the Bishop Airport – Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project has been 
completed is located on the grounds of Bishop Airport, Bishop, California.  

3. The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 
North Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, operates and maintains the 
Bishop Airport.

4. The undersigned, Michael Errante, is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has 
been duly authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted                     , by the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo to execute and file this Notice of Completion.

5. The name of the original contractor that constructed the Bishop Airport – Runway 12-30 
Rehabilitation Project, pursuant to contract with the County, is Granite Construction Inc, of 
Watsonville, CA.

Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related 
functions which are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the contract.

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated:                         By:                          
Michael Errante, Director of Public Works



VERIFICATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)  SS.

COUNTY OF INYO )

I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the 
County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity 
on behalf of which I executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the 
Bishop Airport – Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project, and which entity is the 
owner of the aforesaid interest or estate in the property therein described; that I am 
authorized by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on the entity’s behalf; that 
I am authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the public entity; 
and that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof.  I declare under 
penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and 
the information set forth therein are true and correct.

Dated: ____________________________________

            Michael Errante, PE, Public Works Director



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Risk Management
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Aaron Holmberg 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of contract in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for the provision of legal services. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC of 
Sacramento, CA for the provision of legal services in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for the period of January 
22, 2021 until the subject litigation is completed, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Porter Scott usually handles litigation arising from claims against the County; however, Porter Scott is unable to 
handle anticipated litigation related to a recent claim for damages. Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC is recommended for 
defense of such litigation.   

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny this contract with Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC. This is not recommended as the defense team 
for the subject litigation is needed promptly and we believe this firm is well qualified to handle the matter.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel and PRISM have been consulted in the selection process for this firm for the subject litigation.
 
FINANCING:
Agreement will be budgeted in the Public Liability Budget (500903) in Professional Services (5265). Adjustments 
have been made during the Mid-Year Budget Review Process to accommodate this agreement.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Rivera 2021 Agreement Executed by Shanan Hewitt
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Holmberg Created/Initiated - 1/26/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/26/2021



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Denelle Carrington Approved - 1/26/2021
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 1/26/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/26/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/26/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/28/2021
Aaron Holmberg Final Approval - 1/28/2021































County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 2, 2021 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of January 5, 2021, January 12, 
2021, and January 19, 2021.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 1/28/2021
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 1/28/2021


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here)

	 Closed Session
	2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Pursuant
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY&rsquo;S LABOR NEGOTIATORS &
	4. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT – Pursuant to Government Code §5

	 Open Session
	5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	9. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	10. Request Board change the Authorized Strength in th
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	11. Request Board authorize the Agricultural Commissio
	Agenda Request Form
	ICWD HalfTerm Member Service Plan 2021
	Ag/ESWMA HalfTerm Member Service Plan 2021
	ICWD Letter of Intent 2021
	Ag/ESWMA Letter of Intent 2021

	12. Request Board approve the California Department of
	Agenda Request Form
	California Department of Technology Snowflake Database Data Use And Disclosure Agreement

	13. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	FY 20-21 Inyo Council for the Arts Contract


	 Departmental
	14. Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperso
	Agenda Request Form
	Letter Supporting ESTA FTA Grant Application

	15. Request Board consider request from Preferred Sept
	Agenda Request Form
	Preferred Franchise Agreement 2019
	Preferred Franchise Assignment Letter 12-18-20
	D&S Letter to Supervisors 2021

	16. Request Board: A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
	Agenda Request Form
	2021-1-05 BIH Runway 12-30 Rehab Change Order Resolution
	Notice of Completion Resolution
	Notice of Completion Bishop Airport Runway 12-30 Rehabilitation Project

	10. Request Board ratify and approve the agreement bet
	Agenda Request Form
	Rivera 2021 Agreement Executed by Shanan Hewitt

	18. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	19. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational



